
AGENDA 
SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, September 11, 2024- 5:30 p.m. 

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
970 Klamath Lane – Board Room 

Yuba City, CA  95993 
 

A full Board packet is available for review at the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
Reception Desk, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  (8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through 
Friday – excluding legal holidays) and the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ website at 
www.sutter.k12.ca.us. 
 
5:30 p.m. 
 1.0 Call to Order 
 
 2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 3.0 Roll Call of Members: 
 
  June McJunkin, President 
  Victoria Lachance, Vice President 
  Gurv Pamma, Member 
  Harjit Singh, Member 
  Kash Gill, Member 
 
 4.0 Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board 
 

Members of the public are given an opportunity to address the Board regarding 
items not listed on the agenda.  The California Government Code, Section 
54954.3(a) states, “…….no action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the 
agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of Section 
54954.2. 

 
           5.0      Approve the following Minutes of the Sutter County Board of  
                      Education [Action Item] 

 
5.1  The minutes of the August 14, 2024, regular meeting of the Sutter 

County Board of Education are presented for approval. 

http://www.sutter.k12.ca.us/


Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 2 of 3  
September 11, 2024 
 
 

   6.0   Department Presentations- Business Services Internal and External  
 Director Nic Hoogeveen will be presenting for the departments. 
 
  
   7.0 Business Services Report 
 Director Nic Hoogeveen will present on the monthly financial report for August. 

 
7.1 Monthly Financial Report – August 2024 
 

               
8.0    Donations 
 Assistant Superintendent Ron Sherrod will present the Donation list. 
 
 8.1 Ken Burtis  
 8.2 Nine SCSOS employees donated to the Sunshine Fund 
 
   
9.0    Investment Statement  
 

  Assistant Superintendent Ron Sherrod will present the Investment Statement as of July 
  31, 2024 from the County Treasurer 

 

   10.0 Quarterly Report of Surplus Property 

  Assistant Superintendent Ron Sherrod will present in accordance with Board Policy 3270,  
  the County Superintendent of Schools prepares and presents a quarterly report to the 
  Board of items under $25,000 in value that are being declared surplus. 
   

             11.0  Items from the Superintendent/Board 

     
             11.0  Adjournment 
 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to access the Board Meeting room, 
to access written documents being discussed at the Board Meeting, or to otherwise participate at Board Meetings, please contact 
the Superintendent’s Office at 530-822-2900 for assistance.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
Superintendent’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board Meeting and to provide any 
required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services. 
 



Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 3 of 3  
September 11, 2024 
 
 
All Open Session Agenda related documents, including materials distributed less than 72 hours prior to the scheduled meeting, 
are available to the public for viewing at the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office located at 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba 
City, CA  95993. 



 
Unapproved Minutes 

SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 14, 2024 - 5:30 p.m. 
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 

970 Klamath Lane – Board Room 
Yuba City, CA  95993 

 
 
 

A full Board packet is available for review at the Sutter County Superintendent 
of Schools Office Reception Desk, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  (8:00 a.m. 
– 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday – excluding legal holidays) and the Sutter 
County Superintendent of Schools’ website at www.sutter.k12.ca.us. 
 

1.0 Call to Order 
   A regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education  
   was called to order by President McJunkin at 5:30 p.m.,  
   August 14, 2024, at the Sutter County Superintendent of  
   Schools Office, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, California 

 
  2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
   James Peters Director of FMOF led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
  3.0 Roll Call of Members:  
   June McJunkin, President- Present 
   Victoria Lachance, Vice President- Present 
   Gurv Pamma, Member- Present 
   Harjit Singh, Member-Present 
   Kash Gill, Member- Present 
 
    
  4.0 Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board 
    
   None 
 
 
  5.0 Consent Agenda 
   5.1 Regular Board Meeting Minutes July 10, 2024  
   5.2 Special Board Meeting Minutes July 19, 2024  
 

http://www.sutter.k12.ca.us/


Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 2 of 3  
August 9, 2023 
 
    
 
   A motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda 
    
   Motion: Kash Gill  Seconded: Victoria Lachance 
   Action: Motion Carried 
   Ayes:  5 
   Noes:  0 
   Absent: 0 
 
 
  6.0    Business Department Presentations, which will include 
   Internal and External Business and Payroll. 
   Director; Nic Hoogeveen 
    
   Pulled from the agenda due to staff illness. Item will be on  
   the September Agenda. 
 
    
  7.0    Quarterly Report on Williams/Uniform Complaints  

                   Education Code 35186 requires the county superintendent   
  to report on the number and nature of complaints. 

    Assistant Superintendent; Kristi Johnson updated the  
  board. 

  
    There were no complaints April- June 2024 

                  
8.0 Business Services Report 
  
 The monthly financial report for July was reviewed. 
 Coordinator Paramjeet Kaur updated the board on a 15 day  

  report due by October 15th and will bring back to the board.   
    

        
           9.0 Facilities Report  
   Facilities Site Profile Worksheet and Update summary for  
   the fourth quarter of FY23-24 and first quarter of FY24-25  
   was presented to the Board by Director; James Peters 
   
   Most project have been complete. DSA comments came back  
   3 weeks early and we are on track for new building. PGE is  
   still running behind and we are waiting on a contract.   
   Summer projects went well even with a few departments that 
   moved along with carpets and painting were completed. 



Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 3 of 3  
August 9, 2023 
 
    June praised James on the look of his report and the ease of 
    reading the report. 
  
  10.0    Items from the Superintendent/Board  
    1. Most schools started today 
    2. Cosmetology has 13 students from Live Oak and Sutter  
        High Schools and are expecting to have 17 by the end of  
        the week.  
                             3. Chamber/Community wanted to have Quick Books and  
        OSHA training which are now in the works with our Adult      
        Ed. Program. The first OSHA class will have our FMOF  
        department. 
                             4. Tom spoke about the Welcome Back all Staff Day and how 
        positive it was, Kristi and the Climate and Culture   
       Committee did a wonderful event. June was in attendance     
        and joined in on a few classes. 
                             5. Deputy Superintendent Joe Hendrix spoke on Dual   
        Enrollment for the High Schools in the Yuba    
                Community College District with 5-6 courses, only model  
        currently in California. 
 

 11.0    Adjournment 
  
    A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 5:49pm 
 

      Motion: Kash Gill  Seconded: Pamma 
      Action: Motion Carried 
      Ayes:  5 
      Noes:  0 
      Absent: 0 

 
 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to 
access the Board Meeting room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board Meeting, 
or to otherwise participate at Board Meetings, please contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530-
822-2900 for assistance.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
Superintendent’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board 
Meeting and to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services. 
 
All Open Session Agenda related documents, including materials distributed less than 72 hours 
prior to the scheduled meeting, are available to the public for viewing at the Sutter County 
Superintendent of Schools Office located at 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  95993. 
 

 



  Agenda Item No.  ___ 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:   

BOARD MEETING DATE:  

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 

Action 

Reports/Presentation 

Information 

Public Hearing 

Other (specify) 

PREPARED BY: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

PRESENTING TO BOARD: 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 



Description Account Original Operating Actuals to Projected Difference 2024-25 %

Codes Budget Budget Date Yr Totals (Col D - B) Actuals

as a %

7/1/24 7/15/24 8/15/24 8/15/24 of Budget
(A) (B) (C) (D)  (E)

A.  Revenues

    1. Local Control Funding Formula 8010-8099 11,600,993$     11,600,993$    440,258$       11,600,993$  -                   A 3.8%
    2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 4,167,957$       4,215,510$      68,150$         4,221,022$    5,512                B 1.6%

    3. Other State Revenues 8300-8599 13,913,507$     13,913,507$    1,113,350$    13,930,473$  16,966              C 8.0%

    4. Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 22,112,760$     22,008,338$    249,972$       22,030,787$  22,449              D 1.1%

      5. TOTAL REVENUES 51,795,217$     51,738,348$    1,871,730$    51,783,275$  44,927$            3.6%

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 10,996,905$     11,069,567$    374,546$       11,070,727$  1,160                E 3.4%

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 13,500,178$     13,500,178$    766,945$       13,500,108$  (70)                   F 5.7%

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 11,358,181$     11,372,944$    443,166$       11,364,998$  (7,946)              G 3.9%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 998,295$          1,013,448$      100,449$       1,068,851$    55,403              H 9.9%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 7,300,807$       7,343,005$      1,116,167$    7,791,450$    448,445            I 15.2%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 234,856$          234,856$         17,462$         254,869$       20,013              J 7.4%

    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 1,613,610$       1,613,610$      -$               1,613,610$    -                   K 0.0%

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (135,881)$        (135,881)$        (12,501)$        (135,881)$      -                   L 9.2%

    9. Debt Service 7400-7499 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -                   M 0.0%

 

       10. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 45,866,951$     46,011,727$    2,806,234$    46,528,732$  517,005            6.1%

C. Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures Before Other

Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B10)

D. Other Financing Sources/Uses

    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 34,000$           34,000$           -$               34,000$         -                   0.0%

    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 2,166,453$       2,166,453$      -$               2,166,453$    -                   0.0%

    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                 -$                 -                   0.0%

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses (2,132,453)$     (2,132,453)$     -$               (2,132,453)$   -$                 0.0%

E. Net Change to Fund Balance 3,795,813$        3,594,168$       (934,504)$       3,122,090$     (472,078)$         H

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)

    1. Beginning Balance 21,640,843$     21,640,843$    21,640,843$  21,640,843$  -                   

    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                 -$                 -$               -$               

       Ending Balance 25,436,656$      25,235,011$     20,706,339$   24,762,933$   (472,078)$         

G. Components of Ending Fund Balance
    Designated Amounts 9711-9730 10,500$           10,500$           10,500$         -$                 

    Legally Restricted 9740-9760 11,236,603$     9,400,737$      8,980,603$    -$                 

    Assigned 9780 11,787,883$     13,414,865$    13,337,071$  -$                 

    Restricted Economic Uncertainty 9789 2,401,670$       2,408,909$      2,434,759$    -$                 

    Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 -$                 -$                 -$               -$                 

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
(Unrestricted and Restricted Combined)

August 2024

-17.8%(472,078)$         5,254,543$    (934,504)$      5,726,621$      5,928,266$       

07/16/24-08/15/24



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget July Board Report

07/16/24-08/15/24

Amount Explanation of Differences

A Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)

  -$                       

B Federal Revenues (8100-8299)
Feather River Academy (FRA) 23,571$             Move Title I budget from PCA to FRA

Pathways Charter Academy (24,000)$            Move Title I budget from PCA to FRA

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 5,941$               Budget 23/24 ADR funds

5,512$               

C Other State Revenues (8300-8599)
Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 19,120$             Budget 24/25 Reverse Opioid Overdose

Feather River Academy (FRA) (2,686)$              Update Prop 28 budget to advanced apportionment

Various departments 532$                  Miscellaneous Adjustments

16,966$             

D Other Local Revenues (8600-8799)
Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) (13,312)$            Adjust budget to match ELOP fund balance

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 35,138$             Adjust budget for additional expenses

Various departments 623$                  Miscellaneous Adjustments

22,449$             

E Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)
Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 1,160$               Adjust budget for SELPA Assistant Superintendent contract amount

1,160$               

F Classified Salaries (2000-2999)
Various departments (70)$                   Miscellaneous Adjustments

(70)$                   

G Employee Benefits  (3000-3999)
Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) (7,946)$              Adjust budget for SELPA Assistant Superintendent contract amount

(7,946)$              

H Books and Supplies  (4000-4999)
One Stop 5,000$               Adjust budget for QUEST II to cover program costs

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 44,490$             Budget 24/25 and 23/24 carryover for Reverse Opioid Overdose

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) 2,941$               Establish budget for donations

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 2,500$               Increase budget for non capital equipment

Various departments 472$                  Miscellaneous Adjustments

55,403$             



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget July Board Report

07/16/24-08/15/24

Amount Explanation of Differences
I Services, Other Operations (5000-5999)

County Office 28,763$             
Adjust budget for board room renovation, and increase budget for welcome 

back day expenses

Special Education 380,873$           
Increase budget for extended school year and increase budget for speech 

contractors

One Stop (4,175)$              Adjust budget for QUEST II 

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 29,121$             Increase budget for stipend reimbursement and professional development

Feather River Academy (FRA) 3,885$               Move budget for Yuba‐Sutter Arts and Culture Reimbursement

Pathways Charter Academy 1,721$               Increase budget to match SSO MOU

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 6,951$               Increase budget for legal expenses

Various departments 1,306$               Miscellaneous Adjustments

448,445$           

J Capital Outlay (6000-6999)

County Office 20,013$             
Net effect of moving board room renovation expenses, increase budget for 

carpet installation and FRA electric and concrete removal

20,013$             

K Other Outgo (7100 - 7299)

-$                       

L Direct Support / Indirect (7300-7399)

-$                       

M Debt Services (7400 - 7499)

-$                       

N Transfers In (8910-8979)

-$                       

O Transfers Out (7610-7629)

-$                       

P Contributions (8980-8999)

-$                       

Net Change in Current Year Budget (472,078)$          



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   8.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Donations  
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    September 11, 2024                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Maggie Navarro  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
  Ron Sherrod   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 

Donor    Value     Purpose 
   Ken Burtis    $0.00  Returning historical documents-ledgers 
   9 SCSOS employees   $445.00 Sunshine Fund 
  
    
 
 

24-25 Year Current Period To Date 
Total Donations-Cash     $462.00 $445.00  $907.00 

 Total Donations-Value $0.00  $0.00   $0.00 
Total Donations  $462.00 $445.00  $907.00 
 

 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   9.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:   
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    September 11, 2024               
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
   X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Ron Sherrod   
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
Ron Sherrod    
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
Ron Sherrod    
    
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
The Investment Statement as of July 31, 2024 from the County Treasurer will be 
presented. 
 
 
 
 





















          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   10.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Quarterly Report of Surplus Property 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    September 11, 2024                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
    X  Reports/Presentation 
 
    Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Mona Evans 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
In accordance with Board Policy 3270, the County Superintendent of Schools prepares  
and presents a quarterly report to the Board of items under $25,000 in value that are  
being declared surplus. 
  
 
 
 
 
































	1.0 Sept Agenda Start
	5.0 August Unapproved Minutes
	7.0 BS Board Agenda Item - AUG
	Agenda Item No.  ___
	BOARD AGENDA ITEM:
	BOARD MEETING DATE:
	BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

	7.1 BS Aug Board Report 07-16-24 to 08-15-24
	8.0 Donations
	9.0 Investment agenda item
	9.1 Investment Treasure Report
	10.0 Quarterly Report of Surplus
	10.1 Surplus list

	Agenda Item No: 7.0
	BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Business Services Report
	BOARD MEETING DATE: September 11, 2024
	PREPARED BY: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	SUBMITTED BY: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	PRESENTING TO BOARD: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: The monthly financial report for August will be reviewed
	Action: 
	0: 
	0: Off
	1: Yes

	1: 
	0: Off
	1: Off


	Check Box3: Off


